ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 26, 2004
8:03 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 496

"An Act creating the Youth Vote Anbassador Program and rel ating
to that program authorizing the nenbers of the program to be
appoi nt ed to serve on el ection boar ds; rel ating to
qualifications for appointnment to election boards; and providing
for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 496( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 327

"An Act relating to the powers and duties of the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities; and repeal i ng a
requi renent that public facilities conply with energy standards
adopted by the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 527

"An Act relating to the Alaska Securities Act, including
reports, proxies, consents, authorizations, proxy statenents,
and other materials, civil penalties, refunds of proceeds from
violations, restitution, and investnent adviser representatives;
and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2004



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 496
SHORT TI TLE: YOUTH VOTE AMBASSADOR PROG ELECTI ON BDS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) DAHLSTROM

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) STA

03/ 24/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 24/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 26/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 327

SHORT TITLE: POWERS/ DUTI ES DOTPF
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

05/ 16/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 16/ 03 (H TRA, STA

02/ 19/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 19/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 04 (H M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 26/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 26/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 327(TRA) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 26/ 04 (H M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 01/ 04 (H TRA RPT CS(TRA) NT 4DP

03/ 01/ 04 (H DP: MASEK, OGG, STEPOVI CH, HOLM

03/ 16/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 16/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 26/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

KELLY HUBER, St aff

to Representative Nancy Dahl strom

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 496, noted the
changes nmade by Version H, on behalf of Representative
Dahl strom sponsor.

LEONARD JONES

El ections Special Assistant

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2004



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions on behalf of the
di vision, during the hearing on HB 496.

JEFF OTTESEN, Director

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qutlined the sectional analysis for HB 467.

JAMES CANTOR, Chief Assistant Attorney

Transportation Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Department O Law

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
467.

JEFF PARKER, Attorney at Law
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 327.

DEE ESSERT

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Sand Lake Community
Council in opposition to anending the state's transportation
statute, AS 44.42.050, during the hearing on HB 327.

MARY VH TMORE

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of herself to address
two sections in HB 327 regarding the issues of cost benefits and
retroactivity.

BOB DOLL

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself to ask the
commttee to withhold support from those portions of HB 327 that
would delete the cost benefit analysis in transportation
pl anni ng.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-47, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Coghill, and Wyhrauch were present at the call to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2004



or der. Representatives Lynn and Berkowitz arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 496- YOUTH VOTE AMBASSADOR PROG ELECTI ON BDS

Nunmber 0043

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 496, "An Act creating the Youth Vote Anmbassador
Program and relating to that program authorizing the nmenbers of
the program to be appointed to serve on election boards;
relating to qualifications for appointnent to election boards;
and providing for an effective date.”

Nunber 0088

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 496, Version 23-LS1766\H, Kurtz, 3/25/04, as a work
draft.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.

Nunber 0095

KELLY HUBER, Staff to Representative Nancy Dahlstrom Al aska
State Legislature, discussed the changes made by Version H on

behal f of Representative Dahl strom sponsor. She said Version H
del etes |egislative findings. It clarifies that poll workers
will be from their registered precinct. However, if there are
not enough qualified individuals in the precinct, then the
[Division of Elections] will select people from the district.
As a last choice, if there are not enough people from the
district to work at the polls, then the division will select

peopl e st atew de.

M5. HUBER said [Version H clarifies that the tw youth

anbassadors wll be in addition to the three "adult board
el ection nenbers.”™ She noted that at the previous hearing on HB
496, there had been a question regarding whether the youth
anbassadors w |l be conpensated. She said they wll, because
the way the system works is that they will also serve on the
el ection board, which is a conpensated position. However, if

they choose to do outreach on behalf of the division, that would
be in a volunteer capacity.

M5. HUBER turned to another concern stated at the previous
hearing, regarding whether a youth would be put in a position to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2004



make decisions on challenges at the poll. She said that she
spoke with people from the division and the answer is no,
because in training, there is a chairman of the board, and that
chai rman woul d be an adult. The chairman is the only one at the
poll who woul d make t hose deci sions regardi ng chal |l enges.

Number 0230

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that although there will be
conpensation given to the two [youth anbassadors] added to each
polling place, there is no fiscal note reflecting that fiscal
I npact .

M5. HUBER said she is not certain there would be two added to
each. She said she wuld defer that question to a
representative fromthe division, and she reported that a fiscal
note was "on the way."

Number 0265

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked why the | anguage couldn't provide that the
yout h anbassadors "nay" be conpensat ed.

M5. HUBER concurred. She noted that she had asked the division
that question and the director's response indicated that the
youth will be working, and the idea is to bring the youth into
the system and let them learn; therefore, in sone way, being
conpensated is fair.

Number 0300

REPRESENTATI VE  COGHI LL, in response to Chair Weyhr auch,
confirmed that [Version H dealt with his previous concerns.
Number 0333

LEONARD  JONES, El ecti ons  Speci al Assi st ant, Division of
El ections, Ofice of the Lieutenant CGovernor, in response to a
guestion from Representative Seaton, said the rate of

conpensation for "the individual" would be $7.50 an hour, which
is currently identified in 6 AAC 25.035. He said the division

believes that with the reduction of older workers, there will be
a zero fiscal note "on this inpact." He noted that [the youth
anbassadors] will be paid in training status. He estimated, "It

w Il probably be no nore than 16 hours for this conpensation.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2004



MR. JONES, in response to a question from Representative Seaton,
explained that [the two youth] would be in addition to the three
qualified poll workers. He said the division thinks it has
sufficient funds for the positions. He said the regional
supervisors will make the determ nations based on their budgets.
He reiterated that the division doesn't think this wll have a
significant inpact, "especially to the division."

Nunber 0472

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how nmany poll wor kers  woul d
typically be in a downtown precinct. He asked if HB 496 would
change the nunber from five adult poll workers, for exanple, to
three [adult poll workers], with two youth workers.

MR. JONES said that customarily there would be a mninmm of
three [poll workers] in each precinct. He said he didn't think
there would be a youth poll worker in all precincts, but in
those with them that would increase the nunber by one or two.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he's getting conflicting nessages and
wants to "get this straight as to the effect of this bill on the
poll workers that we're currently using."

Number 0592

M5. HUBER explained that there is a group of poll workers whose
nunber is dwndling, as its nmenbers get older. She stated that
is why the program was suggested, to teach the youth about the
el ection process and bring them in. Those youth won't replace
"the ones you're talking about” right away. She described [HB
496] as a pilot programfor the youths until they becone adults.

She stated, "I think what the division is saying is because in
sone places we just don't have the nunber of poll workers that
we used to, the nunbers are fluctuating a bit; ... therefore
they can absorb it [in] our budget." She indicated that the

youth would not becone "person for person” replacenents, but
woul d learn the process over tine and, hopefully, continue wth
their involvenent in the years to cone.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that if [the youths that would be
hired] would be in addition to the current nunber of workers

then there would be a fiscal note of $7.50 an hour tinmes how
many hours and workers. However, if the ol der people who stop
working are being replaced, then perhaps there wouldn't be a
fiscal note. He clarified that he is trying to find out which
situation it would be. He said he doesn't have a conflict with

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2004



it being either way, or with a training program but just wants
to understand the situation. He asked if, for exanple, there
are currently five workers in an urban area, and if, [with the
passage of HB 496], that mght turn into three regular workers
and two yout hs.

MR. JONES answered that that scenario could happen. He said pay
scales would vary, and he offered exanples. He rem nded the
commttee that the regional supervisors wll consider their
budgets when deci ding whether to [hire] soneone. He reiterated
that the division feels that it has the resources available to
cover the $7.50 an hour, with possible conbinations of three to
six [workers] at each polling place, and didn't see the need to
project additional resources in a fiscal note. He added t hat
the division can't predict how many [youths] w |l be taking part
in the program

Number 0829

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated his understanding that the reason for
[HB 496] is to increase awareness of the election process and to
get the youth of Alaska interested in voting. He noted that the
| egi slature doesn't get paid a lot and he is not a |egislator
because of the noney. He opined, "Because we have requirenents
as to being a nenber of society, it's inherent upon us to do

these things for the right reasons.™ He questioned why the
youth would be paid to learn to be responsible citizens. He
turned to [the bottom of page 4 of a handout entitled, "New
M Il ennium Best Practices Survey,"” included in the conmttee

packet], which shows that 74 percent of states have |aws that
allow for election day workers under the age of 18. He asked if
they are paid.

MR  JONES answered that, based on the information he has
reviewed from"a few of the other states,” the youth are paid at
the mninmnum rate established of the state. He added that he
can't speak to every state that has a program

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM suggested that the youth not be paid, not
that he thinks they shouldn't get noney, but because it's
inportant that they do this for the right reason. He defined
the right reason as understanding that they have a duty to help
society. He indicated he may offer that as an anmendnent.

Number 0980

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like to ask the state if
there would be any Iliability problenms if the youth are not
conpensat ed.

Number 1002

M5. HUBER noted that there is [language] in the bill that would
allow the youth to be volunteers in an outreach capacity. She
stated her assunption that if they can be a volunteer in
outreach for the division, then the division would be all right
in having them as volunteers on the board. She stated her only
concern regarding not paying the youth is that the vyouth
anbassadors are nenbers of the election board for the precinct,
which is why the division felt that they should be conpensated.
She stated it is the conmttee's decision.

Number 1048

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if any coordination has been made to
ensure that the youth involved can get time off from school to
partici pate.

M5. HUBER answered no. She said she thinks that any students
chosen for the program would work with their school to get a day
of f during Election Day. She posited that it is one of those
decisions that would first be nade between the parent and child,
and then be negoti ated between the student and the school.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated he has philosophic problens wth
under age people being on an el ection board. He said, "This is
the very bedrock of our society - the voting process.”

Number 1131

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL revealed that, as soneone who has taught
civics to students who get totally bored with the subject, one
of the nore exciting things that happens to himas a teacher is
to see the light go on in the students eyes that "this is really
about our country, about our life." He said he thinks [HB 496
woul d provide] a good opportunity. Furthernore, he stated that
if he had a student that was going to leave his class to
participate in [this progran], he mght consider giving that
student an A for effort and a little extra credit. Regar di ng
the issue of paynent, he opined, as long as the election board
feels that it can absorb the cost, he certainly doesn't have a
problem with [the youth getting paid]. He indicated that it
would be a little encouragenent and "the others” are going to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2004



paid anyway. He stated that he is ready for the bill to nobve
out of commttee.

Nunber 1187

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he agrees wth "participation in the
process.” In regard to the issue of noney, he said he thinks it
would be fine [to pay the youth] as an incentive and to be on
equal footing wth the other paid workers. He added, "If they
have the noney to pay them if they don't they don't." One way

to deal with that, he suggested, would be to say that they "nmay"
be conmpensat ed. He stated that he doesn't have strong feelings
on the issue one way or another and it's up to the cormittee [to
deci de] .

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that he thinks the youth shoul d be
conpensat ed.

Number 1230

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ concurred with Representative Coghill.
He said, "It just seens to nme that if we're asking people to do
a job, we ought to pay for it. |It's capitalismat its best."
Nunmber 1244

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that, notw thstanding his support
of the program he would like the clarification nade regarding
how the program will work - whether the nunbers of workers wll
be an addition or a replacenent.

Nunber 1267

MR JONES, in response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch,
explained that the fiscal note was called for this norning at
7:30 a.m and [is not yet available].

Number 1275

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH said the commttee would set HB 496 aside unti
a fiscal note is avail abl e.

Nunmber 1284

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL indicated that the words "shall" and
"may" [are both used in regard to the appointnents nade by the
el ection supervisors]. He noted, "That would be optional for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 26, 2004



the youth." He offered his understanding that the issue of pay
may be addressed in the bill; therefore, he said he would be
consi dering that when he receives the fiscal note.
[HB 496 was taken up again later in the neeting.]

HB 327- PONERS/ DUTI ES DOTPF

[ Contains brief nention of SB 371.]
Nunmber 1312

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 327, "An Act relating to the powers and duties of
the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities; and
repealing a requirenent that public facilities conply wth
energy standards adopted by the Departnment of Transportation and
Public Facilities."

Nunmber 1335

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if the comrttee had previously
adopted [CSHB 327(TRA)] .

Number 1350

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH responded, "So noved, and 1'Il object for
di scussi on purposes. "

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM speaking as sponsor of HB 327, invited a
representative from the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities to address the sectional analysis for the commttee.

Nunber 1372

JEFF  OITESEN, Director, Division of Program Devel opnent,
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities, noted that Jim
Cantor from the Departnent of Law is available to answer any
| egal questions that may ari se. He stated his belief that the
proposed legislation is inportant to the state; it potentially
could ensure that transportation projects are acconplished in
the com ng years that otherw se m ght be subject to |itigation

MR. OTTESEN, speaking to the prepared sectional analysis, noted
that he would not address Sections 3, 6, and 7, which he
descri bed as housekeeping sections that are "the first |ook at
DOT&PF' s power and duties in 30 years" and the changes that have

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 26, 2004



taken place in that tine. He stated that the substantive
portions of the bill have two purposes: One is to ensure that a
specific road and bridge project known as the Iliama to
Nondalton is not subject to endless planning and litigation. He
told the commttee that this project has been started and
stopped since the md 1970s and currently is under a prelimnary
i njunction, because the judge found that the state had not
"followed a particular aspect of the planning of statute in
question.” The second [purpose], he noted, is to make the
pl anning process nore efficient by elimnating duplication
between federal and state law and to [renpve] provisions that
subject other projects to the sane type of litigation
surrounding the Iliama to Nondal ton project.

MR. OITESEN stated that Section 1 is reconmmended to DOT&PF by

the Departnment of Law. Section 1, particularly coupled wth
Section 8, ensures that "the law will directly apply to the
subj ect proj ect currently before the superior court in
Anchor age. " Section 2, he noted, applies to the statutory

requi renent that existed when [DOI&PF] was the Departnent of
H ghways, prior to the nerger of "highways and public works."
He said [Section 2] clarifies that the requirenment for a program
of projects is a piece of the overall program of projects now
required at AS 44.42.050. Furthernore, it would change the
timng fromannual to periodic.

MR. OITESEN said Section 4 of the bill applies to the state's
requirenent for a multi-nodal transportation plan and clarifies
that the plan is conprised of many different docunents - perhaps
as many as 80 or 100. He enphasized that this is a key point.
He offered exanples. Furthernore, he noted that [Section 4]
sets the standard for planning to be the federal standard,
"primarily at [23 U S.C. 135]." He noted that the conmttee
packet includes "several docunents that help describe just how
significant those steps are.” He noted one of the docunents is
from a Power Point presentation and describes the federal
pr ocess. He offered his understanding that there is also a
chart that describes the growmh in federal law that applies to
transportation planning. He stated that the transportation
pl anning process is not static, but continues to becone nore
cunber sone and process-driven

Nunmber 1555
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said M. Otesen nentioned sonething to him

yesterday that he thought nay be of interest to the commttee:
He recollected that M. Otesen had indicated that [the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2004



Transportation Equity Act: a Legacy for Users] (TEA-LU), which
was recently passed through the [House Transportation Standing
Commi ttee] was over 500 pages in |ength.

MR. OTTESEN replied yes. He explained that TEA-LU is the House
version of the reauthorization of the transportation program at
the federal Ilevel and is over 500 pages in |length. The
conpanion bill on the Senate side, known as [the Safe,
Account abl e, Flexible and Efficient Transportation Equity Act of
2004] (SAFETEA) is also over 500 pages in |ength. He said that
he has read both bills from cover to cover and there are "hardly
ten pages in themthat [are] in comon.”

Number 1592

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how the perm ssive "may" in the
| anguage of state statute intersects with the requirenent of
23 U.S.C. 135 and the supremacy clause of the U S. Constitution.
He said it seenms to himthat [the |egislature] cannot optionally
deci ded whether or not to follow federal |aw

MVR. OTTESEN replied that the name was chosen Dbecause
23 U S.C 135 applies to surface transportation, primarily

ferries, transit, highways, and trails. It does not apply to
aviation, ports and harbors, and "sone of the other nodes that
we're also responsible for." He stated, "W could not find

conparabl e sections in federal |aw for those nobdes not covered
by 23 U S.C. 135." He explained as foll ows:

Saying "shall" would then lead to the conclusion that
we nust apply the surface transportation (indisc. -
paper shuffling) prograns to nodes of transportation
which they are not directed to do. The truth is, if
this entire section was extinguished from the state
|l aw, we would still have to conply with 23 U S. C. 135,
where it is applicable; it's sinply a requirenent of
our federal funds.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what woul d happen if
23 U.S.C. 135 is anended subsequently. He asked, "Aren't we
adopting, by reference, the possibility of future changes?”

MR. OITESEN answered that's true. He said he thinks changes are

anti ci pat ed. He said, "I know the bill that's in [US
Congress] right now wll alnost undoubtedly have changes in it
fromthe current statutes at the federal |evel. I'd have to go

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2004



back and | ook at that. | thought we'd said, 'as anended', or
"as nodified ."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated for the record that he is
unconfortable with "adopting by reference" federal statutes or
any other statutes that are subject to change. He added, "It
seens to nme it's an abrogation of our |egislative power."

MR. OITESEN returned to his coverage of the sectional analysis.

Section 5 of the bill, he noted, applies to eliciting a project
slated to be set up for design and construction. He noted that
those projects are called: the Statewi de Transportation
| mpr ovenent Program (STI P), regar di ng hi ghways; t he
Transportation |Inprovenent Program for urban areas (TIP),
r egar di ng pr ogr ans pr epar ed by Met ropol i tan Pl anni ng
Organi zations (MPGs) in Fairbanks and Anchorage; and the
Aviation Inprovenent Program (AIP), regarding the use of

aviation funding. He said the departnent basically wants to set
up state law to conply with the several aspects of federal |aw.

MR. OTTESEN turned to Section 8, which he said makes HB 467
retroactive to the time that AS 44.42 was first adopted. He
explained that this section of statute was adopted by executive
order, not as a matter of a legislative Act. He stated that
Section 9 makes the effective date inmedi ate.

Number 1743

MR. OTTESEN pointed to a wite-up regarding why the section on
cost and benefits should not be mandatory. He returned to the
Power Point presentation and the exanples in the growth of |aws
that have applied to the federal side since 1977 "and earlier.”

He also indicated a mtrix of "the requirenent, t he
consul tation, and public outreach in the transportation planning
process." He noted that there are about seven or eight

different laws that [the departnent] has to conply wth, and
virtually all of them apply to the STIP process. Many of the
| aws are new since 1977. He concluded, "Pointing to the federal
process, or sinply even extinguishing this particular |law, would
not |leave us without a significant public process and planning
requi renent that we have to live with."

Number 1775
CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH stated his understanding that a specific case

"brought [DOT&PF] here.” Notw thstanding that, he observed that
HB 467 is a broad bill that would change a lot of DOT&PF s

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 26, 2004



pol i ci es. He asked, "If we're worried about the bridge or the
road on that case, why don't we just deal with that?"

MR. OITESEN explained that he thinks the departnent fears that
there are nmany other projects that are currently at risk.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH i ndi cated that people have expressed concern to
himthat "this is abrogating the public involvenent in a process
that [DOT&PF] is engaged in." He nentioned cost benefit
anal ysis and a broad array of projects.

MR. OITESEN, regarding cost benefit analysis, stated that the
current law requires the departnent to do a cost benefit
analysis for any new project or facility. He said, "It
unfortunately leads to the |aw of unintended consequences." For
exanple, he said last week the departnent considered vans for
the elderly and the disabl ed. Every community has a different
set of facts and costs and the departnent will have to do a cost
benefit analysis in order to issue the vans to "those 12 report-
payi ng communities.” He explained that [doing the cost benefit
analysis] wll slow down the process, as well as cost nore
noney. He said the departnment knows that whether there are 10,
100, or 1,000 seniors in a community, vans wll be needed to
transport them to various activities. He said, "Those are the
kinds of projects that sinply don't l|lend thenselves to cost
benefit analysis.” He continued as foll ows:

Trails, transit, ferries are never undertaken wth
cost benefit analysis. If we were to conpare ferries
to roads - where it's possible to build roads - we
woul d al nost inevitably conme up with a conpletion that
the road is the right solution, or that the ferry

in Southeast is not warranted because a new road in
another part of the state would have nore benefits.
So, it's a slippery slope we walk on when we require
cost benefit [analyses] in all cases.

Nunmber 1862

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he would like to know nore about
the need for retrospectivity.

MR OTTESEN deferred to M. Cantor.

JAMES CANTOR, Transportation Section, Civil Di vi si on
(Anchorage), Departnment O Law, told Representative Berkowtz

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2004



that retrospectivity addresses a couple of issues. He continued
as follows:

One is on the Iliama [to] Nondalton road, where costs
were not ignored, but there was not a cost benefit
wei ghing, because it's a rural project where it my
not be susceptible to that kind of analysis. And the
court said, "No, the state |law says you nust use cost
benefit analysis."

Now, the type of analysis that was done on that case
was through the federal process - which ... is the 500
pages of [ISTEA [Internodal Surface Transportation
Efficiency Act of 1991] or TEA-21 [Transportation
Equity Act for the 21st Century - 1998], and now TEA-
LU - that sends us through an inordinate anount of
analysis and public process, but not cost benefit
anal ysis. The cost benefit analysis is left over from
this executive order, during the [Governor] Hammond
adm ni stration, that becane law. And so, part of the
retrospectivity is addressed specifically to that
case, to essentially overrule the judge and continue
proceeding with that project.

The remai nder of the retrospectivity |ooks at projects
t hat we thought were appropriately and legally
conducted using federal noney over the last 20 years,
or so, and other ones that are still in the pipeline.
It's kind of simlar to what M. OQtesen was saying,
[regarding] the types of incidences that are not
susceptible to cost benefit analysis.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked M. Cantor to review the status
of "the case that necessitates these actions."

MR. CANTOR offered his understanding that the superior court
issued a prelimnary injunction on the basis of this cross
benefit |anguage, and the state has "gone back to conply wth
the order to conduct that analysis."

Nunmber 1968

JEFF PARKER, Attorney at Law, informed the commttee that he is
representing the plaintiffs in Trout Unlimted and Bob Gl lamv.
ADOT&PF. He noted that the state has advised the court "in its
papers” that it will conplete its cost benefit analysis by July.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "Why are we junping in the
m ddl e of a court case?"

MR. CANTOR offered his understanding that [DOT&PF] is concerned

that "this case could be litigated forever.”" He noted, "This is
the second piece of litigation on this project - it was first
litigated in about 1996 or 1997." He indicated that there is
concern that even the departnent's attenpts to conply wll be
litigated. He stated, "The departnent believes that even its
attenpts to conply - and it hopes to conply fully - are ones
that are unnecessary to the planning process, which is why
they've backed up and taken kind of a broader view" In

response to questions from Representative Berkowitz, he said the
first case was a federal case and the second case has not yet
reached the suprene court. He said there is not an appeal
pendi ng, because currently the case is still in court. He
proffered that there was a prelimnary injunction notion and
there could be further proceedings, "depending on the next
steps.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how | ong the second case has been
pr oceedi ng.

Number 2053

MR. PARKER said the case has been pending for approximately 18
nont hs, for discovery and pretrial practice. In response to a
foll owup question from Representative Berkowitz, he noted that
the notion was issued January 6, 2004, about two nonths after

ar gunment . He announced he would like to fully address the
question of project delays. He noted that M. Otesen had
previously stated that the project has been delayed since the
1970s. In fact, he said, the departnent suspended the project

in 1986 after doing a cost benefit analysis and concl udi ng that
[the project] was not economcally justified. He indicated that
the benefit cost ratio [from that analysis] "worked out at O0.26"
and the departnent judged that it is not "normal" to build a
project with a benefit cost ratio of |ess than one. He noted,
"The costs were in excess of $12 nillion to conplete the
project; the benefits were calculated at $3 mllion."

MR. PARKER CONTI NUED as fol | ows:
Now al so, in response to the large picture of what M.
Cantor and M. QOtesen just said, if you look in a

regi onal Southwest transportation plan, vyou'll see
that the defendants, [DOT&PF], did cost effectiveness

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 26, 2004



[anal yses] on every ... new road project that 1is
proposed in that plan, including the WIIlians Port,
West side Cook Inlet to ... King Salnon and King
Sal non to the Chignik (ph). And you can cal culate and
see the cost effectiveness dollars right there.

What caught them up in this case was that they
excluded this project from that cost effectiveness
analysis. And if you read the court's opinion with a
decision, which | think you have in front of you,
you'll see that the court says that [the departnent]
did cost effective [analyses] for every other project
in the Southwest regional transportation plan. It
simlarly did it for projects - all new facilities -
in the Prince WIliam Sound regional transportation
pl an and in t he Sout heast Al aska regi ona

transportation plan. And M. Otesen can correct ne,
but | think it also did them for marine-inproved new
facilities and new vessels, when you |ook at those
pl ans.

So, the information has been put in front of you for
many projects, and it is an excellent basis upon which
to make decisions. And what this bill is: this bill
elimnates putting that information in front of you.
And what caught [the departnment] up in the [Iliama to
Nondalton] case is its affirmative decision not to do
cost benefit [analyses], and | surmse it so decided
because there was such a negative determ nation nade
in 1986 - that it had a 0.26 and you never build at
| ess than one.

Number 2207

DEE ESSERT testified on behalf of Sand Lake Community Council in
opposition to anending the state's transportation statute, AS
44.42.050, which would elimnate the state's obligation to
review the cost of inprovenents to existing roads and the cost
and benefits to new roads. She explained the opposition was due
to her experi ence wth Anchor age Met ropol i tan Ar ea
Transportation Solutions (AVATS), the |ocal MPO She stated
that the cost of AMATS projects have escal ated because engineers
and project nmanagers have failed to consider hidden costs
[resulting fron] soils, environnental inpacts, and property
i npacts.

MS. ESSERT conti nued as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2004



Wiy is the state seeking to elinmnate a key statutory
requirenent at state |level that would control costs,
when it has initiated policies at the local level to
address costs? The cost overruns for Anchorage
projects initiated a change by state [DOI&PF], whereby
the policy conmttee of AMATS is now required to
provide quarterly obligation reports. As a project
increases funding for a phase by nore than $500, 000
or 50 percent of the project phase, the city nust
approve the change. At the March 11 policy commttee,
menbers were asked to approve approximately $3 mllion
to cover additional construction costs for C Street -
phase three - due to extensive peat deposits in the
right-of-way. |If there had been a better cost benefit
analysis of C Street, wuld the initial design or
right-of-way have changed to allow for greater
economny?

| am also anong many who oppose the coastal trai

extensi on below the buffer in the refuge. The project
has risen from $12 mllion to $37 nmillion as the cost
of the environnment and private property is escal ated.
The [Draft Environnental |Inpact Statenent] (DEIS) is
an exanple of a politically notivated docunent and
does not reflect accurate billable costs, because
there is no objective cost benefi t anal ysi s.
Engi neers and attorneys who have considered the | egal
and construction costs estinmate the cost in the $60-

mllion to $80-mllion-range.

House Bill 327 elimnates the public claim that costs
and benefits must be considered. Projects in renote
areas are subject to greater cost overruns. When
federal dollars are declining and state resources are
limted, it nakes no sense to elimnate the only
obj ective criteria appl i cabl e to transportation
pl anni ng. Wth the new admnistration that 1is
enphasi zi ng resource devel opnent, transportation
planning in renote areas nust be cost-effective and
account abl e. Transportation projects in metropolitan

areas must enphasize traffic flow, air quality, and
safety, and serve vehicular traffic, public transit,
and pedestrians; it nust not be based on Bush's
entrails exclusively.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2004



The state nust allocate scarce resources for those
projects that provide the greatest benefit for the

nost reasonabl e cost. Wth appropriate cost benefit
criteria, a change in admnistration won't nean a
bridge to nowhere .... In a time of declining
revenues, the state nust retain all statutory

requi renents that preserve an orderly transportation
system by subjecting all subjects to a cost benefit
analysis. | oppose HB 327 and its conpani on SB 371.

Number 2345

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked Ms. Essert if there is any part of HB 327
t hat she does not oppose.

MS. ESSERT replied that it is a conplex bill. She said that
when she began studying the bill, she thought it was about
energy requirenents, but when she got into it, she becanme nore
confused about certain sections of it. She indicated that she
would [limt] her coments [to those parts of the bil

regardi ng] cost benefit analysis. In response to a followup

guestion from Chair Wyhrauch, she clarified where the Sand Lake
Community Council area is.

Nunmber 2348

MARY VWH TMORE testified on behalf of herself to address two
sections in the bill regarding the issues of cost benefits and
retroactivity. She stated her belief that HB 327 is really a
"slap in the face to Anerican tax payers,"” because it renoves
the economc analysis, [which is how projects should be
eval uat ed.

TAPE 04-47, SIDE B
Nunber 2378

M5. VWH TMORE opined that economc conpetitive analyses of
projects is really a driving force in how projects should be
done, and also "it's the way our economy works." She expl ai ned,
"You have to look at the conpetitive basis of projects.” Ms.
VWhitnore said HB 327 is insulting and detrinental to every
Al askan, because it neans that projects will not be considered
for benefits and costs to the conmmunity, but will be influenced
by whim and political clout. She said she'd like to know what
the justification is for this.

MS5. VWH TMORE conti nued as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2004



| find that HB 327 is offensive, because it raises ny
suspicions of why a bill would be retroactive to 1977
- 27 years. This neans that any person who's raised
any objection to a transportation plan over the | ast
27 years is cut out if the basis of that dispute is
based on cost. There's sonething very wong with this

appr oach. | think that HB 327 gives the green I|ight
to any project. No matter how poorly conceived it is,
it could go forward. If it has political backing or

clout, you never have to |look at the neasure [of] the
project, as far as its benefits to the comunity and
how nmuch it's going to cost.

M5. VWH TMORE urged the commttee not to pass HB 327 but,
conversely, to bury it.

Nunber 2302

BOB DOLL told the comittee that although he is a forner
director of the Southeast region of [DOI&F] and speaks from
that viewpoint, he is testifying on behalf of hinmself. He asked
the conmttee to withhold support from those portions of HB 327
that would delete the cost benefit analysis in transportation
pl anni ng. He continued reading his testinony as foll ows:

| make this request with sone understanding of the
dilemma you face. You're being asked, in this bill,
to endorse bad governnment. You're being asked to |end
your support to enshrining the ternms "arbitrary" and
"capricious," not as accusations to be avoided but as
the standard for governnent decision-mnmaking. | have
appeared before the conmttee only recently in
connection with another such arbitrary and capricious
decision, and ny apprehension of such events is all
too clear.

And what is it that the bill seeks to avoid? | cannot
i mgi ne an econom st with an ounce of inagination who
could not nmake a positive cost benefit conclusion for

a marginal project, if that were his tasking. Such
"taskings" are acconplished routinely. Only with the
nost worthless proposals would he fail, and properly
Sso.

The current statute does not provide us with certainty
regarding the value of a project, but it does offer

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2004



sonme objective criteria for us to use in exam ning how
our tax dollars are being spent. And given the
general deference of courts to executive agencies
whi ch have conplied with their own regulations and the
statutes in effect at the time, it is difficult to
understand why this requirenent IS SO onherous.
Federal dollars pay for the work and the tinme required
is measured in nonths. In the tineline for nost
transportation projects that's inconsequential. As a
transportation professional, | would not want to spend
ny time, or that of ny staff, on a project which could
not neet this sinple test. As a citizen, | hope that
public nmoney will not be thus squandered on a project
whi ch could not neet that test.

Nunber 2226
MR. DOLL pointed out that federal dollars pay for "this whole

thing"; there is no inposition on the state for it. He
continued reading his testinony as follows:

The dilemma that | nentioned earlier arises because
there are transportation projects «currently under
consideration that my not neet this test. Those

projects represent sone of the nobst cherished hopes
and dreans of the residents of the |ocations where
they' re contenpl at ed. If their anbitions are not
realized, they would be, to say the |east,
di sappoi nt ed.

| would suggest to you that you could neasure the
value of the project inversely to the protest at
having it exam ned closely. In fact, if a positive
cost benefit ratio is as easily achieved as 1've
suggested to you, you may well wonder why anyone woul d
object to the requirenent, particularly since it does
not require that the project be positive in its cost

benefit anal ysis. It only requires that that
i nformation be produced so that the public and you, as
menbers of the legislature, can see it as well. HB
327 endorses bad government and ... should not receive

the conmttee s approval.
Number 2150

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. Doll if he conducted cost benefit
anal yses for projects when he was director.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2004



MR. DOLL answered, "Yes, M. Chairman, with the exceptions that

M. Otesen has nentioned, we did, routinely. ... | Dbelieve
that whatever difficulty [DOT&PF] may have with this, they have
anpl e opportunity to overcone it." He suggested that if the
departnment were to encounter a project that obviously doesn't
require a cross benefit analysis - such as M. QOtesen's
previously stated exanple of "the transit case” - it wuld be a

sinple matter to provide a two-page statenent explaining that
the analysis is unnecessary. He surmsed that is all that would
be required.

Number 2128

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH observed that although part of the Southeast
transportation plan indicated that it would be |ess expensive to
have a road than a ferry, "we didn't nove forward too quickly on
the road north from Juneau."

MR. DOLL responded that witing a cost benefit analysis for that
project would be a task. He stated that he is not certain that
anyone should ever do a cost benefit analysis that conpares
water transportation with land transportation, because the two
are so different that the conclusions reached would be
guestionable. He added, "But |I'm sure we could do it, and have
done it."

Number 2090

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Doll why he didn't testify on this
i ssue before the House Transportation Standing Conmmttee.

MR. DOLL responded that he had been unaware of [that committee's
meeti ng] .

Number 2074

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told M. Otesen that the second point
made in the handout from M. Parker [available in the commttee
packet] states that passage of HB 327 would increase the
likelihood that the state will have to refund noney to the
federal governnent. He asked M. Otesen if he is famliar with
t hat argunment and woul d address it.

Number 2053

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2004



MR. OITESEN replied, "I don't know the reason he's making that
statenent, so no, | don't ... see the connection."”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that M. Qtesen could review
the handout from M. Parker and respond to the question at a
| at er date.

Nunmber 2030

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH, in response to a question from Representative
Berkowitz, stated his intention for the bill is to not take
action on HB 327 until the next tinme the commttee hears the
bill. He revealed that a lot of people have voiced their
concerns about the bill with him He said he wants to air those

concerns and "talk about how sensitive the sponsor is to
anending it."

Nunmber 2006

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ noted that he has anendnents in mnd,
as well. He stated his intent is to basically strip [the bill]
down to "just the housekeeping."

[ HB 327 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 496- YOUTH VOTE AMBASSADOR PROG ELECTI ON BDS

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH returned to HOUSE BILL NO 496, "An Act creating
the Youth Vote Anbassador Program and relating to that program
aut horizing the nenbers of the program to be appointed to serve
on election boards; relating to qualifications for appointnent
to el ection boards; and providing for an effective date."

Nunber 1981

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said he believes that Representative Seaton had
made the notion to nove CSHB 496, Version 23-LS1766\H, Kurtz,
3/25/04, [from commttee]. He asked if Representative Seaton
wanted to maintain his notion.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern that the fiscal note
isn't accurate because he didn't see how there <could be
addi tional enployees in many places and have a zero fiscal note.
Therefore, Representative Seaton withdrew his notion.

Nunber 1954

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noved to report CSHB 496, Version 23-
LS1766\H, Kurtz, 3/25/04, out of conmttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that if the commttee
doesn't agree with the fiscal note, it can nove to anend it.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opined that the perm ssive |anguage
doesn't demand that new people are hired. He further opined
that there is a lot of flexibility, and therefore he accepted
the zero fiscal note.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH inquired as to the difference between a zero
fiscal note and an indeterm nate fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ interjected, "An indeterm nate fiscal
note goes to the Finance Commttee."

Number 1907

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if it's possible that since it's
discretionary to pay [for the nenbers of the youth anbassador
program, the fiscal note may be indeterm nate.

LEONARD  JONES, El ections  Speci al Assi st ant, Division of
El ections, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, stated that the
division, in talking with its regional supervisors, believes the
cost of these workers can be absorbed. Furthernore, the
di vision doesn't foresee any additional inpact.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he didn't see at all that this
IS di scretionary wth regard to whether t hese [ yout h
anbassadors] are conpensated. He pointed out that page 2, lines
10-12, read: "(d) A nenber of the program who is appointed
under (c) of this section is conpensated as provided in AS
15.15.380 only for service on the election board of the
precinct."” Therefore, the discretion is with regard to whether
any [youth anbassadors] are hired or not.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he understood. However, he wunderstood
Representative Coghill to be referring to the |anguage on page
2, line 26, which specifies "nay appoint". Therefore, there
seens to be a conflict between the "is conpensated" |anguage and
the "may appoint" | anguage. He related his understanding that
the election board is given the discretion to do this if the
funds are avail able. If the funds are available, the election
board "nmay appoint"” these individuals and will conpensate them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ wi t hdrew hi s objecti on.
Nunmber 1825

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that there being no objection, CSHB
496( STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

The commttee took an at-ease at 9:05 a.m to set up for the

overview on the Departnment of MIlitary & Veterans' Affairs. See
9:09 aam mnutes for this date.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 26, 2004



